
 
 

PROCUREMENT DEPARTMENT 
2 MONTGOMERY STREET, 3RD FL. 

JERSEY CITY, NJ  07302 
 

9/3/2014 
 

ADDENDUM #5 
 
To prospective Bidder(s) on Bid #39159 for GENERAL CLEANING SERVICES AT 
THE PORT AUTHORITY BUS TERMINAL (PABT) 
 

Due back on 9/10/2014, no later than 11:00AM 
(Originally due on 9/3/2014, no later than 11:00AM) 

 
I. BIDDER'S QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 

 
The following information is available in response to questions submitted by prospective 
Bidders.  The responses should not be deemed to answer all questions, which have been 
submitted by Bidders to the Port Authority.  It addresses only those questions, which the 
Port Authority has deemed to require additional information and/or clarification.  The 
fact that information has not been supplied with respect to any questions asked by a 
Bidders does not mean or imply, nor should it be deemed to mean or imply, any meaning, 
construction, or implication with respect to the terms.  
 
The Port Authority makes no representations, warranties or guarantees that the 
information contained herein is accurate, complete or timely or that such information 
accurately represents the conditions that would be encountered during the performance of 
the Contract. The furnishing of such information by the Port Authority shall not create or 
be deemed to create any obligation or liability upon it for any reason whatsoever and 
each Bidder, by submitting its Bid, expressly agrees that it has not relied upon the 
foregoing information, and that it shall not hold the Port Authority liable or responsible 
therefor in any manner whatsoever.  Accordingly, nothing contained herein and no 
representation, statement or promise, of the Port Authority, its Commissioners, officers, 
agents, representatives, or employees, oral or in writing, shall impair or limit the effect of 
the warranties of the Bidder required by this Bid or Contract and the Bidder agrees that it 
shall not hold the Port Authority liable or responsible therefor in any manner whatsoever. 
The Questions and Answers numbering sequence will be continued   
 
 
Question #49 Can you provide an approximate number of dispensers replaced 

yearly?  
 

Answer #49 
 

One (1) per month. 
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Question #50 You state estimated consumption is based on non-public bathrooms.  
How many bathrooms, fixtures and staff are on site that utilize the 
bathrooms? There are approximately eighteen (18) restroom (total of 
men’s + ladies) in which paper towels are provided.  

Answer #50 
 

Toilet dispensers replaced (either new or repaired) are about six (6) 
to eight (8) weekly. 

Question #51 Part V, page 12, you do not provide quantity for floor scrubbers, 
polishers or walk-behind automatic floor scrubbers.  Please provide 
quantity for each?   

Answer #51 
 

Refer to Addendum #2 paragraph J. 

Question #52 Are all the stations required in the bid document currently active or 
is there an increase? 

Answer #52 
 

At the start of the new contract all stations previously de-activated 
will be fully activated. 

Question #53 The staff requirement shows 4208 labor hours per week 7 days.  The 
last payroll submitted 08/24/14 shows 2880 labor hours, while the 
payroll submitted 08/14/14 shows 3840 labor hours.  Please explain 
because neither match current bid requirement.    

Answer #53 
 

Bidders must be in accordance to the requirements of the bid. 

Question #54 The bid document states 225,000 commuters daily.  Does this apply 
weekends too or is count lower Saturday and Sunday? 

Answer #54 Most commuters are traveling Monday through Friday. 
 

Question #55 What is the total square footage of the facility? 
 

Answer #55 Approximately 850,000 sq. ft. 
 

Question #56 Do you require sidewalk protection scaffolding for truss cleaning?  
Sidewalk protection scaffolding is 72k per cleaning, at a frequency 
of twice a year? 

Answer # 56 Refer to Part V, page 19, Section 16 entitled "Safety Provisions" 
Question #57 Is the truss cleaning exterior only, since you cannot access interior 

of truss because of netting? 
Answer # 57 No.  
 
This communication should be initialed by you and annexed to your Bid upon 
submission. 
 
In case any Bidder fails to conform to these instructions, its Bid will nevertheless be 
construed as though this communication had been so physically annexed and initialed. 
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 THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ  
 
 
 KATHY LESLIE WHELAN 
 ASSISTANT DIRECTOR 
 COMMODITIES AND SERVICES DIVISION 
 
BIDDER'S FIRM NAME: ________________________________________________ 
 
INITIALED: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
DATE: _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
QUESTIONS CONCERNING THIS ADDENDUM MAY BE ADDRESSED TO 
SELENE ORTEGA, WHO CAN BE REACHED AT (201) 395-3407 or at 
sortega@panynj.gov. 
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